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Town of South Kingstown, Rhode Island

180 High Street
Wakefield, RI 02879
Tel. 401-789-9331

FINANCE DEPARTMENT

December 28, 2011

To the Citizens of the Town of South Kingstown, Rhode Island:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Town of South Kingstown, Rhode Island, for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, is hereby submitted as mandated by both state statutes and the
Town charter. State laws require that all general-purpose local governments publish within six months
of the close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants licensed to practice in the State of
Rhode Island.

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the Town of
South Kingstown. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making
these representations, management of the Town of South Kingstown has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government's assets
from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the Town
of South Kingstown’s financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal
controls should not outweigh their benefits, the Town of South Kingstown’s comprehensive framework
of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the
financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, | assert that, to the best
of my knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The Town of South Kingstown’s financial statements have been audited by Braver PC, a firm
of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable
assurance that the financial statements of the Town of South Kingstown for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2011, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded based upon the audit,
that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the Town of South
Kingstown’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, are fairly presented in
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented as the first component of the
financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the Town of South Kingstown was part of
a broader, federally mandated "Single Audit" designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor
agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to
report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited
government's internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on
internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports
are included in the Single Audit section of this report.



GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The Town of South Kingstown’s MD&A can be found immediately following the
report of the independent auditors.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

The Town of South Kingstown, established in 1658 and incorporated as a town in 1723, is a
diversified community in a rural, suburban area of southern Rhode Island approximately 30 miles from
Providence. The geography of the Town includes farmland, wetlands, salt marshes, waterfront areas,
woodland, and many natural and scenic attractions. The total area is 62.3 square miles, consisting of
56.8 square miles of land and 5.5 square miles of inland water. The Town, fronting on the Atlantic
Ocean, is part of the South County summer vacation area. The Town is empowered to levy a
property tax on both real and personal properties located within its boundaries. The Town is also
authorized to assess and collect excise taxes on registered motor vehicles and trailers.

The Town has a home-rule charter and operates under the Council-Manager form of
government. The Town Council is elected by popular vote every two years and is responsible for,
among other things, passing ordinances, adopting a budget, appointing committees, and hiring both
the Town Manager and Town Solicitor. The Town Manager is responsible for carrying out the
policies of the Town Council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the Town, and for
appointing all other employees, except for School Department personnel.

The Town provides a full range of municipal services including public safety protection, the
construction and maintenance of highways, streets, and other infrastructure, libraries, recreational
activities, planning and zoning, education and administrative services. In addition, the Town operates
water, sewer and solid waste utility systems.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the Town of South Kingstown’s financial
planning and control. All departments of the Town are required to submit requests for appropriation
and revenue estimates to the Town Manager on or before the last day of January each year. The
Town Manager uses these requests as the starting point for developing a proposed budget. Based
on amendments to the Town Charter, approved by South Kingstown voters in November 2006, the
financial town meeting was eliminated. The 2010-2011 fiscal year budget was the fourth year that
the budget was approved under the new procedures. It is the responsibility of the Town Manager to
submit a proposed budget for the following fiscal year to the Town Council on or before March 1% of
each year. The Town Council holds several budget work sessions in March to discuss the details of
his proposed budget document. The Town Council may revise and adopt a preliminary budget not
later than March 22™ of each year. Two public hearings are required to be conducted on the
preliminary budget prior to April 18",

Following adoption of the preliminary budget by the Council, any qualified elector of the Town
may circulate a petition requesting the Council to increase or decrease by any amount any item of
expenditure in the said budget or to insert a new item of expenditure. The Council, before final
adoption of the budget, shall consider and vote upon each such petition(s) which were submitted on
or before April 21 containing no less than twenty-five (25) valid signatures of qualified electors of the
Town.

The Council shall, on or before May 1° of each year, complete its consideration of any petitions
and make any final changes in the preliminary budget it may deem advisable, and give final approval
to the budget by a vote of a majority of all the members of the Council.

Following final approval of the budget by the Town Council, any qualified elector of the Town
may circulate a petition requesting that a referendum be held on the appropriation for the general fund
or the school fund in the budget as approved. Such petition may propose a reduction or increase in
the total appropriation for said funds.
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PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT (Continued)

The Town Clerk shall cause a referendum by ballot to be held on all budget changes requested
on petitions provided that each such petition shall contain signatures of no less then two hundred of
the qualified electors of the Town and shall request an increase or decrease of a sum of at least
$250,000.00. The qualified electors shall be instructed to vote either for the original total or for one (1)
of the proposed increases or reductions thereof. The appropriation receiving the most votes shall be
declared to have been adopted.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, major program function (e.g., public safety),
and department (e.g., police). Department heads may make transfers of appropriations within a
department. Transfers within a major program function may be made by the Town Manager,
provided that proper notification is given to the Town Council. Contingency funds available at year-
end are authorized by resolution of the Town Council to cover any deficits within general
classifications.

Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for the general fund and the school
unrestricted fund on pages 22-25 and page 26 respectively as part of the basic financial statements.

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the Town of South
Kingstown operates.

Local economy. The economy is centered on the University of Rhode Island, which has an
enroliment in excess of 16,500 and employs more than 2,350 people. South County Hospital and
tourism trade are also key components of the South Kingstown economy. According to the latest
employment data available for the 2010 calendar year, as reported by the RI Department of Labor and
Training, the Town experienced an increase in private sector employment between 2002 and 2010
amounting to 1,129 new jobs. Total annual employment in the private sector increased from 8,414 to
9,543.

In the fall of 2010, the University of Rhode Island (URI) began construction of a new College of
Pharmacy building. The estimated cost of the new pharmacy facility is $75,000,000. University
officials hope the facility is part of URI's goal to become a leading center of biomedical research and
have an ambitious plan to develop the north district of the campus into a health and life sciences
center. In November 2010 voters approved a referendum of $65,100,000 for a new Chemistry
building. The University’s 2011 capital improvement program notes that more than $450,000,000 in
investment is pending to support some 20 various on-going and new projects.

A statistical profile of the Town is provided below to show local population, housing, and
economic trends and conditions that influence the demand for public services and facilities and the
ability of the Town to support needed services. The following indicators highlight the magnitude of
change that has taken place in South Kingstown in recent years:

* According to the 2010 Census, the Town's population grew by 2,718 people from 27,921 to
30,639, an increase of 10 percent from 2000 to 2010. Growth in the number of students living in
group quarters at the University of Rhode Island accounted for 50% of the increase in population.
The increased student population is the result of several new dormitories being constructed on
campus during the last ten years.

e The median sale price of a single-family home in South Kingstown decreased to $290,000 in the
first half of 2011, compared to the mid-year 2010 median sale price of $300,000. This represents
a ten year increase of $100,000 from the year 2001, when a median priced house was selling for
$190,000.
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FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION (Continued)

e The 2010 U.S. census reports a total of 13,218 housing units in the Town of South Kingstown, of
which 78.0 percent (10,316) were occupied, 17.5 percent were seasonal, recreational, or
occasional use, and the remainder were vacant. Of the 10,316 occupied housing units, 72.6
percent were owner occupied and 27.4 percent were renter occupied. The average household
size of an owner occupied unit was 2.60 persons, while the average household size of a rented
unit was 1.99 persons.

¢ The estimated median income of South Kingstown’s households during the time period of 2005-
2009, was $74,501.

* On an annualized basis, private sector jobs totaled 9,543 in 2010, of which 2,565 were in Health
Care and Social Assistance, 1,290 were in Retail Trade, 1,407 were in Accommodations and Food
Service and 604 were in manufacturing jobs. The private sector job total was a reduction of 90
jobs in comparison to the 2009 total of 9,633.

e The size of the resident workforce increased from 14,794 to 15,776 between June 2001 and June
2011. The number of employed residents increased slightly from 14,243 to 14,403. The June
2011 unemployment rate for South Kingstown was reported at 8.7 percent, compared to the
statewide average of 10.3 percent.

* Fifty percent (50%) of South Kingstown residents, older than age 25, had a bachelor's degree or
higher during the time period of 2005-2009, another 43% had completed high school and 7% did
not have a high school diploma.

Long-term capital financial planning. As a part of the annual budget process, the Town Manager
prepares and presents a six-year capital improvement plan. This plan identifies costs and financing
methods for those capital projects that the Town anticipates funding over the next six years. The
2011-2012 fiscal year capital improvement plan projects needs through fiscal year 2017. The plan
provides for the needs of the general government and addresses such issues as infrastructure, major
equipment replacement, school facilities, public safety, recreation and open space purchases.

This plan estimates total project cost over the six-year period of approximately $20,935,260.
Financing, net of third party funding sources for these projects by debt issuance, approximates
$11,250,000. In addition, $12,076,000 in capital projects to be funded on a “pay as you go” basis are
projected over the same six-year period. The total estimated cost of the two components of the six-
year capital improvement plan is $33,011,260.

Major projects to be bonded in the plan include: Recreation and open space programs for
$7,685,000; general municipal improvements for $10,650,260; and school improvements for
$2,600,000.

Cash management policies and practices. It is the policy of the Town to invest funds in a manner
which will provide the highest investment return, with the maximum amount of security, while meeting
the daily cash flow needs of the Town and conforming to all state statutes governing the investment of
municipal funds. Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in certificates of deposit,
obligations of the U.S. Treasury and money market mutual funds. In addition, some trust funds held
corporate stocks and bonds in their investment portfolios. Investment income includes appreciation in
the fair value of investments. Increases in fair value during the current year, however, do not
necessarily represent trends that will continue; nor is it always possible to realize such amounts,

especially in the case of temporary changes in the fair value of investments that the government
intends to hold to maturity.
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FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION (Continued)

Risk management. The Town is a member of the Rhode Island Inter-Local Risk Management Pool.
The cooperative pool was formed in 1986 to address the insurance needs of Rhode Island
municipalities. South Kingstown became a member on July 1, 1988. The pool provides all property,
liability and worker's compensation insurance policies for the Town. Property and liability claims are
subject to a $2,500 deductible with the exception of public officials’ liability claims, which are subject
to a $5,000 deductible. The pool's self-insured retention levels range from $10,000 to $1,000,000
depending on the type of coverage provided. In addition to the self-insurance provided by the pool,
there is also reinsurance through third party sources for claims up to $5,000,000. In addition to the
insurance coverage provided, the pool also provides various educational and training seminars to
promote safety training and loss control efforts. Additional information on the Town of South
Kingstown’s risk management activity can be found in Note 3 on pages 47-48 of the notes to the
financial statements.

Pension and other post-employment benefits. The Town of South Kingstown participates in the
Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of the State of Rhode Island (MERS), an agent multiple
employer defined benefit pension plan for all permanent employees, who work in excess of 20 hours
per week, except for certified school department employees. The Town has separate plans for
general municipal and non-certified school employees, police and emergency medical personnel.
Each year, an independent actuary engaged by the MERS calculates the amount of the annual con-
tribution that the Town of South Kingstown must make to each pension plan to ensure that the plan
will be able to fully meet its obligations to retired employees on a timely basis. As a matter of policy,
the Town of South Kingstown fully funds each year's annual required contribution to the pension plan
as determined by the actuary. The actuarial assumptions and methods used in the actuary’s report
comply with the parameters for disclosure that appear in Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 25 (GASB 25).

As of June 30, 2010, the Town of South Kingstown has funded 76.4 percent of the present
value of the projected benefits earned by general municipal and non-certified school employees; 76.0
percent of the present value of the projected benefits earned by police employees; and 109.3 percent
of the present value of the projected benefits earned by emergency medical personnel. The June 30,
2010 funded ratios represent a significant reduction from the prior year. The main reasons for the
reduction in the funded ratios were changes in the actuarial assumptions adopted in April, 2011. The
rate of investment return was reduced from 8.25% to 7.5% and there were also changes made to the
mortality tables. Subsequent to the end of the fiscal year (in November, 2011) the State of Rhode
Island passed legislation on pension reform. The changes made as a result of the legislation will have
a positive impact on the actuarial valuation results for June 30, 2010. The new funded ratios are
91.9% for general municipal and non-certified school employees, 94.1 percent for police employees
and 159.6 percent for emergency medical personnel.

The Town of South Kingstown participates in the Employees’ Retirement System of the State
of Rhode Island (ERSRI), a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan for all
certified School Department personnel. Annual contributions by both employers and the State on
behalf of those employees are determined by an annual actuarial review and are assessed as a
percentage of the participant's payroll. The required contributions include (a) normal costs, (b)
payments to amortize the unfunded frozen actuarial accrued liability and (c) interest on the unfunded
frozen actuarial liability. The actuarial assumptions and methods used in the actuary’s report comply
with the parameters for disclosure that appear in GASB Statement No. 50.



FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION (Continued)

The Town of South Kingstown also provides postretirement healthcare benefits for certain
retirees and their dependents. As of the end of the current fiscal year, there were approximately 110
retired employees receiving these benefits. The Town has completed an actuarial valuation of the
OPEB obligations with a valuation date of July 1, 2011. The Town has established an irrevocable
trust fund for the funding of Other Post Employment Benefits and as such the financial statements
include an OPEB Trust Fund and the related disclosure requirements and required supplementary
information in accordance with GASB Statement 45.

Additional information on the Town of South Kingstown’s pension arrangements and post-
employment benefits can be found in Note 12 on pages 64-72 and Note 17 on pages 75 -78
respectively in the notes to the financial statements.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

On October 4, 1989, the US Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) notified the Town of
South Kingstown that the Rose Hill Regional Landfill had been placed on the National Priorities List
(NPL) for contaminated sites requiring clean-up actions. The landfill was previously operated by the
Towns of South Kingstown and Narragansett (The Towns).

A “Record of Decision” (ROD) was issued in December 1999, which delineates EPA’s
approved remediation strategy for the site. Consent Decree negotiations with EPA and the Rhode
Island Department of Environmental Management (RIDEM) began in November 2000 and were
completed in January 2003.The Consent Decree designates RIDEM as the lead agency to oversee
the remediation design and remediation action for the site. The initial waste consolidation phase
commenced in June 2005 and was completed in September 2007. The RIDEM solicited bids during
the spring of 2007 for the second phase of the project, which includes construction of a gas collection
system and multi-layer cap. Construction of the second phase began in November 2006 and was
completed in December 2007.

The Towns have paid $4,125,000 to settle all past and future federal liabilities associated with
the Rose Hill site. South Kingstown’s $2,000,000 payment to the Federal Government was funded
with a 20-year general obligation bond sold in September 2002 at an interest rate of 1.648%.
Repayment of the debt service associated with this bond will be provided from funds held in reserve
within the Solid Waste Fund and from property taxes. South Kingstown also paid $504,932 for natural
resource damages associated with the landfill contamination.

The Consent Decree also requires reimbursement of 30% of the State of Rhode Island costs
associated with the remediation of this landfill site and ongoing operation and maintenance costs.
These costs will also be shared equally between the two Towns. The estimated cost of reimbursing
the State, over a 27-year period beginning in fiscal year 2011, is $3,643,564, of which South
Kingstown is responsible for $1,821,782. During the 2011 year the Town paid $66,514 towards this
liability. The balance of the estimated liability of $1,755,268 has been included in the government-
wide financial statements at June 30, 2011 (rounded to $1,755,270).

In addition to the Rose Hill Regional Landfill site, the West Kingston/URI Disposal Area
Landfills, located on Plains Road, were added to the NPL on July 29, 1992. The West Kingston town
dump began operation in the 1950's and ceased operations in 1978. The University of Rhode Island
(URI) and the Towns of South Kingstown and Narragansett agreed to participate as a Potentially
Responsible Parties (PRP) Group in the remediation of the site under State landfill closure
regulations.

The final cost for the site remediation at this location is $7,072,692. In addition, there will be
ongoing operation and maintenance costs paid out on an annual basis. These costs will be included
as part of the annual operating budget.
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AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Town of South
Kingstown for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.
The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the
highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to

program standards. Such CAFR must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The Town of South
Kingstown has received a Certificate of Achievement for the last twenty-one consecutive fiscal years
(fiscal years ended June 30, 1990-2010). We believe our current report continues to conform to the

Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine
its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation of this report was made possible by the efficient and dedicated services of the
entire staff of the Finance Department, and in particular Susan Macartney and Frank Xavier. |

sincerely appreciate their efforts in assisting me with preparing this comprehensive annual financial
report.

In closing, | would like to express my appreciation to the Town Manager and the Town Council
for their interest and support in planning and conductlng the financial operations of the Town in a

responsible and progressive manner.
Re pectfully ﬁi

an R Lord,
Finance Director

vii



Certificate of

Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Town of South Kingstown
Rhode Island

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2010

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

Lot . Jandor

President

Gy # B

Executive Director

viii




TOWN OF SOUTH KINGSTOWN

FINANCE

INSPECTION
AND ZONING

PLANNING

TAX
ASSESSMENT

TOWN CLERK

ENGINEERING

INSPECTIONS AND
SURVEYING

STREETS &
HIGHWAYS

WATER

WASTEWATER
SOLID WASTE

POLICE

EMERGENCY
MEDICAL
SERVICES

ANIMAL CONTROL

HARBOR
MANAGEMENT

RADIO SERVICES

LIBRARIES

PARKS AND
RECREATION

ADULT DAY
SERVICES

SENIOR
TRANSPORT

SENIOR
CENTER




TOWN OF SOUTH KINGSTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

Carol Hagan McEntee, Vice President

Mary S. Eddy

TOWN ATTORNEYS

Michael Ursillo
Andrew Teitz
Terrence G. Simpson
Nancy Letendre

Tax Assessor

Town Clerk

Library Director

Finance Director

Leisure Services Director

Planning Director

Director of Administrative Services
Building Inspection Official

Public Services Director

Police Chief

TOWN OFFICIALS
June 30, 2011

TOWN COUNCIL

Ella M. Whaley, President

Kathleen A. Fogarty
James W. O’Neill

TOWN MANAGER

Stephen A. Alfred

DEPARTMENT HEADS

PROBATE JUDGE

Stephen R. White

Jean-Paul Bouchard
Dale S. Holberton
Shirley D. Long
Alan R. Lord
Theresa L. Murphy
L. Vincent Murray
Andrew E. Nota
Jeffrey T. O’Hara
Jon R. Schock
Vincent Vespia, Jr.



TOWN OF SOUTH KINGSTOWN

FINANCIAL SECTION

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION




&’ Braver.

Accountants & Advisors

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Honorable Town Council
Town of South Kingstown, Rhode Island

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of
South Kingstown, Rhode Island as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise
the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. We also have audited the
statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances — budget and actual — budgetary
basis (General Fund and School Unrestricted Fund) of the Town of South Kingstown, Rhode Island, for the
year ended June 30, 2011, as displayed in the Town’s financial statements. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Town of South Kingstown, Rhode Island's management. Our responsibility is
to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information, as well as the budget and actual — budgetary basis
statements of the Town of South Kingstown, Rhode Island as of June 30, 2011, and the respective
changes in financial position, and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 28, 2011 on our consideration of the Town of South Kingstown, Rhode Island’s internal control
over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not
to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results of our audit.
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, the Schedule of Funding Progress for Pension Plans, and the
Schedule of Funding Progress for OPEB Plans on pages 3 through 15, and pages 79 and 80, respectively,
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Town of South Kingstown, Rhode Island’s basic financial statements. The
Introductory Section, Combining Fund Financial Statements, Capital Asset Exhibits, Other Exhibits, and
Statistical Section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the
financial statements of the Town of South Kingstown, Rhode Island. The Combining Fund Financial
Statements, Capital Asset Exhibits, Other Exhibits, and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are
the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial
statements as a whole. The Introductory and Statistical Sections have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Graer 5

Providence, Rhode Island
December 28, 2011



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the Town of South Kingstown, we offer readers of the Town’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2011. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction
with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on
pages i-vii of this report as well as the Town’s basic financial statements that follow this section. All
amounts in the tables in this MD&A are expressed in thousands. All amounts in the narrative portion are

expressed in real dollars.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the Town of South Kingstown exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most
recent fiscal year by $136,306,218 (net assets). Of this amount, $34,661,688 (unre-
stricted net assets) may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citi-
zens and creditors.

The government's total net assets increased by $6,783,700. The major factors in this
increase were significant capital improvements completed or in progress during the year.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town of South Kingstown’s governmental
funds reported combined ending fund balances of $44,096,494. Approximately 21.1% of
this total amount, $9,323,111 is available for use at the government's discretion
(unassigned fund balance).

The remaining fund balance of $34,773,383 includes $14,165,610 in non-spendable funds,
$9,574,187 in restricted fund and $11,033, 586 in committed funds.

The Town’s total bonded debt declined by $3,730,547 (12.4 percent) during the current
fiscal year. The key factor in this decline was the retirement of $3,730,547 in bonds. The
Town did not issue any new debt during the fiscal year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of South
Kingstown’s basic financial statements. The Town’s basic financial statements comprise three
components: 1) government-wide, financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the
financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic

financial statements themselves.



Overview of the Financial Statements (Continued)

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Town of South Kingstown’s finances, in a
manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Town'’s assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town of South
Kingstown that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs
through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the Town
include general government, public safety, streets and highways, libraries, education and recreation.
The business-type activities of the Town include a water fund, a wastewater operations fund, a solid
waste fund and a school cafeteria fund.

The government-wide financial statements include only the activities of the Town of South
Kingstown. There are no component units within the Town’s jurisdiction.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 16-17 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town of
South Kingstown, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Town can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However,
unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on
near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a
government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with
similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's
near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.



Overview of the Financial Statements (Continued)

Governmental funds (Continued)

The Town of South Kingstown maintains forty-eight individual governmental funds. Information
is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, school fund,
and the school trust funds, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other forty-five
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each
of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements included in
other supplementary information.

The Town of South Kingstown adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund and
school fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the general fund and school
fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 18-26 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The Town of South Kingstown maintains two different types of proprietary
funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in
the government-wide financial statements. The Town of South Kingstown uses enterprise funds to
account for its water fund, wastewater operations fund, solid waste fund and school cafeteria fund.
Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally
among the Town’s various functions. The Town uses internal service funds to account for the health
care management fund and the compensated absences fund. The health care management fund is
used for medical costs incurred by persons covered by the health insurance plans of the Town, and to
pay expenses incurred in connection with administering the plan. The compensated absences fund
accounts for accrued sick and vacation time for the various governmental funds. Because these
services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been
included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information
for the water fund, wastewater operations fund, solid waste fund and school cafeteria fund, all of
which are considered to be major funds of the Town of South Kingstown. The basic proprietary fund
financial statements can be found on pages 27-30 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the Town of South
Kingstown’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for
proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 31-32 of this report.
Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to

a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The
notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 33-78 of this report.



Overview of the Financial Statements (Continued)

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the Town of South
Kingstown’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension and OPEB benefits to its employees.
Required supplementary information can be found on pages 79 and 80 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds
are presented immediately following the required supplementary information on pensions. Combining
and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 81-93.

Government-wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's

financial position. In the case of the Town of South Kingstown, assets exceeded liabilities by
$136,306,218 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

TOWN OF SOUTH KINGSTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

NET ASSETS
For the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2011 (in 000’s)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Current and Other Assets | $ 58,878 | $ 57912 | § 7330 | $ 6,629 | § 66,208 | $ 64,541
Capital Assets 87,837 86,600 24,231 24,680 112,068 111,280
Total Assets 146,715 144,512 31,561 31,309 178,276 175,821
Long-Term Liabilities 24,984 28,157 2,551 2,840 27,535 30,997
Other Liabilities 12,661 13,623 1,775 1,678 14,436 15,301
Total Liabilities 37,645 41,780 4,326 4,518 41,971 46,298
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets
net of related debt 64,187 59,515 21,530 21,683 85,717 81,198
Unrestricted 28,957 28,760 5,705 5,107 34,662 33,867
Restricted 15,928 14,457 - 15,928 14,457
Total Net Assets | $ 109,072 | § 102,732 | $ 27,235 | $ 26,790 | $ 136,307 | $ 129,522

By far the largest portion of the Town's net assets (63%) reflects its investment in capital assets
(e.g., land, buildings, infrastructure, machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire
those assets that are still outstanding. The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Town
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the Town of South Kingstown’s net assets (11.7 percent or $15,927,670)
represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining
balance of unrestricted net assets ($34,661,688) may be used to meet the government's ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.



Government-wide Financial Analysis (Continued)

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town of South Kingstown, with one exception, is able to
report positive balances in all three categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well
as for its separate governmental and business-type activities. The one exception is the Cafeteria Fund, a

business-type activity, which has a deficit position of $60,978 in net assets.

The Town's net assets increased by $6,783,700 during the current fiscal year. Of this amount,
governmental activites accounted for $6,339,745 of the increase while business-type activities

accounted for an increase of $443,955.

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the Town of South Kingstown’s net assets

by $6,339,745 thereby accounting for 93.5 percent of the total growth in the net assets of the Town.

Major revenue factors included:

Property taxes are the largest revenue source for governmental activities
accounting for approximately 71 percent of total revenues. Operating grants
and contributions and charges for services, fees, and licenses provide
approximately 16 percent and 6.8 percent of total revenues respectively.

Based on state law, a statistical revaluation of all property assessments was
required for the 2011 fiscal year. Property tax revenues for the 2011 fiscal year
increased by $995,258 or 1.54%. Based on the revaluation total taxable
property declined by $855,496,092 from $5,182,620,321 to $4,327,124,229 due
to the current real estate market conditions. Based on the change in values, the
property tax rate increased from $12.09 to $14.19 per thousand dollars of
assessed value. Motor vehicle values increased from $99,344,256 to
$219,696,414 based on the State reducing the excise tax reimbursement
program exemption from $6,000 to $500. The motor vehicle excise tax rate
remained frozen at $18.71 per thousand dollars of assessed value.

Charges for services increased by $1,723. Although the overall increase was only
minor there were several large increases and decreases by fund. The General
fund had several increases which totaled $161,032. The increase in rental of town
properties account of $101,623 was directly related to several new cell antenna
leases on town property. Real estate conveyance and non-business licenses and
fees were also up by $59,238. Offsetting the General Fund were declines in the
School Unrestricted Fund of $154,289. There were several other changes
amongst a multiple of funds which offset each other.

Operating grants and contributions increased by $26,718 from the previous
fiscal year. The increase was mainly attributable to additional funds received
for school restricted grants of $286,801 and the initial contribution of $194,098
in assets associated with the Irving Knowles Fund. Offsetting the increase to
some degree was the reduction in funding of unrestricted state aid ($254,027)
for the School Department, a scheduled reduction in debt service
reimbursements from the State for libraries ($22,595) and school improvements
($46,759) and a reduction of $93,250 from a state grant for a portion of the cost
of the statistical property revaluation program, which had been completed in the
previous year. Annual variances in several other state and federal grants
accounted for the majority of the remaining difference.



Government-wide Financial Analysis (Continued)

¢ Investment earnings increased from a gain of $1,822,022 in the prior fiscal year
to a gain of $2,733,097 in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. The increase of
$911,075 was attributable to a significant increase of $1,025,195 in the School
Trust Funds' investment income. The increase was the result of favorable
equity market conditions, which produced significant gains in the fund’'s
portfolio. Offsetting the increase in equity gains was a reduction in General
Fund investment earnings of $129,368, as compared to the previous year, due
to lower interest rates. The remaining balance of $15,248 of the increase was
distributed amongst the balance of governmental funds.

TOWN OF SOUTH KINGSTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

‘For the Fiscal Years ending June 30, 2011 and 2010 in 000’s

Govemmental Business Type
Activities Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Revenues:
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services $ 6310 |8 6,309 5224 | $ 5,121 11,534 | § 11,430

Operating Grants and Contributions 14,625 14,598 321 275 14,948 14,873

Capital Grants and Contributions 1,003 678 155 0 1,158 878
General Revenues:

Property taxes 65,798 64,729 65,798 64,729

Other taxes

Motor vehicle phase-out taxes 168 1,876 168 1,876

Telephone and hotel taxes 415 373 415 373

Grants and aid not restricted for a specific 1,414 1,441 1,414 1,441

program

Unrestricted investment eamings 2,733 1,822 42 45 2,775 1,867

Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0

Total Revenues $ 92,466 | $ 91,826 57421 $ 5,441 98,208 | $ 97,267

Expenses:

General Govemment 8,762 9,182 8,762 |$ 9,182

Public Safety 6,842 6,587 6,842 6,587

Public Works 3,268 3,123 3,268 3,123

Human Service Agencies 146 167 148 167

Public Libraries 1,050 1,015 1,050 1,016

Education 62,708 62,584 62,708 62,584

Recreation 2,274 2,238 2,274 2,238

Interest on long-term debt 1,087 1,237 1,087 1,237

Wastewater 2,942 3,085 2,942 3,085

Solid Waste 511 472 511 472

Water 832 808 832 806

School Cafeteria 1,022 957 1,022 957

Total Expenses $ 86,117 | $ 86,133 5307 | $ 5,320 91,424 | $ 91,453

Increase in net assets before transfers 6,349 5,693 435 121 6,784 5,814
Transfers (9)! (16) 9 16 0 0
Increase in net assets $ 6,340 | $ 5,877 44413 137 6,784 | $ 5814
Net assets 7/1/10 102,732 97,055 26,790 26,653 129,522 123,708
Net assets 6/30/11 $ 109072|8$ 102,732 27,2341 $ 26,7980 136,306 | § 129,522




Changes in Net Assets (Continued)

Education expenses account for approximately 72.8 percent of the total expenses within the
governmental funds of the Town of South Kingstown. Public safety and general government
expenses account for approximately 7.9 percent and 10.2 percent respectively of the total expenses

for the 2011 fiscal year. Major expense factors included:

(]

Governmental activities declined slightly by $15,327 from $86,132,693 to $86,117,366.
The decline was the result of the prolonged downturn in the economy and reflected a
conservative approach to spending.

Overall expenses related to the general governmental category declined by $419,291
based on several variances within the different programs.

Interest on long term debt declined by $169,036 based on a declining debt schedule.
Contributions to human service agencies declined by $21,350.

An increase of $124,121 for education related expenditures. There were several large
variances, both positive and negative, which accounted for the increase.

The following operating programs of the General Fund saw an increase in the amount
of overall expenses. The Public Safety program had the largest increase in
expenditures of $255,672. Public Works expenses increased by $143,973, while
Recreation was up by $36,153 and Libraries increased by $34,431.

All labor contracts for Town employees had a 2.25 percent cost of living increase.
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Changes in Net Assets (Continued)

Expenses by Function - Governmental Activities
1.24%

_ b General
Government

@ Public Safety

O Public Works
~3.79%

1.22%

O Public Libraries
@ Education
Recreation

@ Human Service

Agencies

O Interest on long-
term debt

(.

Business-type activities. Net assets in business-type activities increased by $443,955 resulting in a
1.6% increase in business-type net assets.

Charges for services for business-type activities accounted for 91% of the total revenue
sources. The balance of revenues for business-type activities was from operating grants and
contributions (5.6%), investment earnings (.7%) and from capital grants and contributions of 2.7%.

Wastewater treatment expenses account for approximately 55.4% of the total expenditures
within the business-type activities of the Town. Solid waste, school cafeteria operations and water
fund expenses account for approximately 9.6%, 19.3% and 15.7% respectively of the total business-
type activities expenditures for the 2010 fiscal year.

Charges for services for business-type activities increased slightly from $5,120,850 to
$5,223,540. The wastewater fund had a decline of $37,668. Several variances to prior year fees
resulted in the slight decline. Charges for services for the water fund increased by $32,651, while the
solid waste fund experienced an increase of $58,633 in these program revenues. The increase in the
water fund charges was the result of variances to prior year fees including user fee revenues from
residents and cell antenna lease receipts. Solid waste fees declined based mainly on a reduction in
commercial tipping fees paid by the third party contractor operating the transfer station. Charges for
services for the cafeteria fund increased by $49,074. Operating grants and contributions increased by
$21,683 in the cafeteria fund while grants in the Water Fund increased by $25,000. Unrestricted
investment earnings declined from $45,386 to $42,184 for all business-type activities. Reductions in
interest rates earned on investments were responsible for generating the decline in this revenue
source.

Expenses in the wastewater fund declined by $143,397 due to a reduction in costs as a result
of employee attrition and a reduction in maintenance type expenditures. The $25,625 increase in
water fund expenses was due to the power washing of the two water tanks.

Changes in Net Assets The $39,236 increase in expenses for the solid waste fund was attributable
to and increase in landfill maintenance costs offset somewhat by a decline in tipping fees paid for
waste hauled to the Johnston Central Landfill. Costs to operate the cafeteria fund increased by
$65,542 or 7%, based on the food service contract entered in to by the school department.
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Changes in Net Assets (Continued)

Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities
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Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As noted earlier, the Town of South Kingstown uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the Town of South Kingstown’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is
useful in assessing the Town of South Kingstown’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved
fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending
at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Town of South Kingstown’s governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $44,096,494. Of this amount, $9,323,111 is available for
spending at the government’s discretion (unassigned) within the Town’s General Fund. The remaining
fund balance of $34,773,383 includes $1,592,066 committed to help finance the 2011-2012 fiscal year
budgets, $1,000,000 canmitted to help pay for Superfund remediation costs. The remaining amounts of
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Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds (Continued)

$32,181,317 consist of non-spendable fund balance of $14,165,610, restricted fund balance of $9,574,187
and committed fund balance of $ 8,441,520.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Town of South Kingstown. At the end of the
current fiscal year the total fund balance reached $11,664,133, which represents an increase of
$156,518. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned
fund balance and total fund balance to total General Fund budgeted expenditures. Unreserved fund
balance represents 12.7 percent of the 2012 FY Adopted General Fund Expenditure Budget, while total
fund balance represents 15.9 percent of that same amount.

The fund balance of the Town of South Kingstown's General Fund increased by $156,518 as
compared to the June 30, 2010 fund balance as originally reported. This increase is the result of a
restatement of the opening fund balance for inclusion of the Municipal Planning Fund ($132,293) as part
of the General Fund due to GASB 54 implementation, and the net results from operations ($24,225) for
fiscal 2011. Key factors in this increase are as follows:

e The Town committed $1,200,000 of fund balance to help finance the 2010-2011 general
fund budget. The planned drawdown of fund balance was consistent with prior year use of
fund balance.

e The difference between the GAAP basis of accounting and the budgetary basis of
accounting is the result of recognizing the fund balance commitment of $1,200,000, as a
revenue under the budgetary basis but not the GAAP basis. In addition, accounting for
encumbrances resulted in another $4,611 in budgetary basis expenditures being more
than the GAAP basis. Based on the implementation of GASB Statement 54, the Town
recognized $16,600 in additional expenses on a GAAP basis which were transferred from
the Municipal Planning Special Revenue Fund. A prior year purchase order balance of
$266 was cancelled which was recognized on a budgetary basis but not in the GAAP
basis revenues.

e A budgetary basis operating surplus in the general fund of $1,236,540. Expenditures
under budget contributed $397,243 to the surplus, while revenues finished the fiscal year
with a $788,595 surplus. Other financing sources (uses) under budget increased the
surplus by $50,702.

e Conservative spending patterns which included a hiring freeze of non-essential positions,
allowed the Town to achieve savings of $397,243 on the expenditure side. Favorable
expenditure variances of significance included savings in the general government
accounts ($125,684), public safety ($68,707), public works ($64,556), insurance
($48,084), employee benefits ($37,371) debt service ($20,385) recreation ($20,173) and
libraries ($12,283). The employee benefit savings were the result of the enacted hiring
freeze, which resulted in reduced employer costs associated with Social Security and
retirement contributions.

e Positive budget variances in the revenue accounts such as property taxes ($432,544),
state aid revenues ($257,708) licenses and fees ($81,246), departmental revenues
($72,243), and miscellaneous revenues ($44,083) all contributed to the budgetary surplus.
Offsetting these positive variances was a shortfall in investment income ($99,229).

The school fund has a total fund balance of $2,725,758 of which $167,769 is committed to
liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the prior period, $15,231 is recognized as non-spendable for
prepaid expenditures and $392,066 is committed to help finance the 2011-2012 fiscal year budget. The
remaining balance of $2,150,692 is available to help finance future years’ school budgets.
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Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds (Continued)

Proprietary Funds. The Town of South Kingstown’'s proprietary funds provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets in the water fund at the end of the fiscal year amounted to $1,343,765, an
increase of $128,747. Unrestricted net assets in the wastewater fund increased by $556,851 to a total of
$3,229,784. The school cafeteria operations improved by $4,308 to a deficit position of $68,562,
while the solid waste fund finished the year with unrestricted net assets of $1,200,056, which was a
decline in value of $92,192.

Other factors conceming the finances of these four funds have already been addressed in the
discussion of the Town of South Kingstown’s business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Overall the Town finished the 2010-2011 fiscal year with a $1,236,540 budgetary surplus.
Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget involved transferring funds from
departments with expenditure surpluses to departments with expenditure deficits and transferring various
department surpluses to different reserve funds to ensure adequate funds for future anticipated
expenditures.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The Town of South Kingstown’s investment in capital assets for its governmental
and business type activities as of June 30, 2011 amounts to $112,068,479 (net of accumulated
depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and
equipment, park facilities, infrastructure, and construction in progress. The total increase in the Town of
South Kingstown’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was .7 percent (a 1.4 percent
increase for governmental activities and a 1.8 percent decline for business-type activities).

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

e The purchase of an EMS ambulance and utility vehicle and various medical
equipment amounted to $204,250.

e A variety of road construction projects were completed and capitalized. Projects
capitalized as infrastructure totaled $761,018, which included work completed on
Moonstone Beach Road and Liberty Lane.

e Various capital improvement projects to town recreational facilities accounted for an
additional $193,965 in acquisitions. Improvement at the police station, library and
public services building accounted for another $ 109,138 in new capital assets.

e Upgrades to the Town’s IT network totaled $72,980.

o Construction in progress of the Governmental Funds at June 30, 2011 totaled
$2,962,951 based on several ongoing projects.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration (Continued)

Town of South Kingstown’s Capital Assets
(Net of accumulated depreciation) in 000’s

Govermnmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Land $ 13669{$% 13,669/ 8 1,587 $ 1,587| % 15,256 |$ 15,256
Land Improvements 7,967 7,871 2,182 2,238 10,149 10,107
Buildings 16,953 17,554 4,053 4,258 21,006 21,812
Building Improvements 22,766 23,849 1,828 1,913 24,594 25,762
Equipment 3,746 3,628 2,502 2,665 6,248 6,293
Vehicles 1,957 2,074 97 98 2,054 2,172
Infrastructure 17,816 17,451 11,832 11,914 29,648 29,365
Construction in Progress 2,963 503 150 9 3,113 503
[Total $ 87837 |% 86599 |% 24231 |$ 24680 ({$ 112,068 |$ 111,270

Additional information on the Town of South Kingstown’s capital assets can be found in note 6 on
pages 52-53 of this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town of South Kingstown had total bonded
debt outstanding of $26,351,619, entirely backed by the full faith and credit of the Town. Bonds
authorized but unissued totaled an additional $12,715,000.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation bonded debt a town can issue to 3 percent of
net assessed property values. However, all bonds approved through State enabling legislation and voter
referendums are exempt from the limit. At June 30, 2011, the Town had a debt limit of $136,404,619. Of
the Town's $26,351,619 in debt outstanding, $5,338,372 is subject to the Town's legal debt limit. A
balance of $131,066,247 exists within the legal limit for additional bonds to be issued.

Town of South Kingstown, Rhode Island’s
Outstanding Debt
General Obligation Bonds in 000’s

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities
2011 2010 2011 2009 2010 2010
General Obligation Bonds $23,650 | $27,085 $2,702 $2,997 | $26,352 | $30,082

The Town'’s total bonded debt declined by the amount of principal payments made of $3,730,547
(12.4 percent) during the 2011 fiscal year. The Town did not issue any new debt during the fiscal year.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration (Continued)

On April 30, 2010 Moody’s Investors Services recalibrated the Town’s bond rating as part of their
new, uniform, single global rating scale, which rates municipal and corporate securities in the same
manner to better serve all market participants. This resulted in an upward shift of the Town’s long-term
municipal rating from Aa2 to Aa1. South Kingstown is one of only four Rhode Island communities that
have a bond rating of Aa1.The Town had previously received upgrades from A to A-1 in 1991, from A-1
to Aa3 in 2002. and from Aa3 to Aa2 in 2006. The Moody's credit report cited the following factors for the
upgrade in 2006:

The ongoing growth trend in the Town’s tax base.
The economic stability provided by the University of Rhode Island and South County Hospital.
The Town’s well-managed financial operations including healthy and stable reserves within the

General Fund, and strong reserve levels within the capital project funds. Prudent budget practices
were also identified as a positive.

The Town'’s outstanding collection rate on property taxes.

A favorable debt position, with a low debt burden and a rapid repayment schedule of principal.
The Town’s comprehensive six-year Capital Improvement Plan.

Wealth levels for income and full values per capita that exceed state averages.

Additional information on the Town of South Kingstown’s long-term debt can be found in note 8 on
pages 55-58 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

e Based on the difficult economic environment in which the Town was operating, the 2012 fiscal
year budget increased by $558,124 in comparison to the 2011 fiscal year budget.

e Property tax revenues for the fiscal year 2012 reflect an increase in the Town’s tax levy of
.95 percent or $621,399 greater than the previous fiscal year. The property tax rate
increased from $14.19 to $14.51 per thousand dollars of assessed value. Total taxable
property declined by $39,747,698 from $4,546,820,643 to $4,507,072,945. The .87%
decline in values and the increase in the tax rate were generally associated with the
increase in the motor vehicle exemption from $500 to $3,000. The change in exemption
value resulted in a reduction of $39,747,698 in assessed values for motor vehicles.

e Based on a declining debt service schedule debt service costs were reduced by
$293,735. The pay-as-you-go portion of the 2011-12 FY Capital Budget was increased
by $18,000.

During the current fiscal year, the fund balance in the General Fund increased to $11,664,133.
The Town of South Kingstown has committed $1,200,000 of this amount for spending in the 2012
fiscal year budget and $1,000,000 to pay for future Superfund debt service costs, $115,633 is
committed for future municipal planning projects and $22,810 is committed for outstanding
purchase orders at June 30, 2011. The Town also has an unassigned fund balance of $9,323,111
to use at its discretion.

Requests for Information: This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the

Town of South Kingstown’s finances for all those with an interest in the Town's finances. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information
should be addressed to the Office of the Finance Director, 180 High Street, Town Hall, Wakefield, Rhode

Island, 02879

-
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TOWN OF SOUTH KINGSTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2011
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 39,228,249 $ 6,497,450 $ 45,725,699
Investments 15,555,199 15,555,199
Accounts receivable 1,044,855 912,299 1,957,154
Internal balances 120,939 (120,939) -
Due from federal and state governments 692,020 27,905 719,925
Net OPEB Obligation, prepaid 284,081 284,081
Prepaids 1,030,328 - 1,030,328
Total Current Assets 57,955,671 7,316,715 65,272,386
Noncurrent Assets:
Deferred charges - refunding 313,008 313,008
Deposits 364,200 364,200
Deferred charges - bond issuance 245,388 13,098 258,486
Capital assets not being depreciated 16,632,325 1,736,316 18,368,641
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 71,205,049 22,494,789 93,699,838
Total Noncurrent Assets 88,759,970 24,244,203 113,004,173
TOTAL ASSETS 146,715,641 31,560,918 178,276,559
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 2,000,345 334,430 2,334,775
Accrued liabilities 4,658,933 57,262 4,716,195
Due to federal and state governments 37,235 342,548 379,783
Unearned revenue 715,362 619,589 1,334,951
Deposits held in custody of others 172,040 - 172,040
Current portion of compensated absences 1,750,000 118,600 1,868,600
Current portion of claims and judgements 66,630 - 66,630
Current portion of bonds 3,260,000 303,006 3,563,006
Total Current Liabilities 12,660,545 1,775,435 14,435,980
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated absences 2,904,767 152,341 3,057,108
Accrued claims and judgements 1,688,640 - 1,688,640
General obligation bonds, net 20,390,000 2,398,613 22,788,613
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 24,983,407 2,550,954 27,534,361
TOTAL LIABILITIES 37,643,952 4,326,389 41,970,341
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets net of related debt 64,187,374 21,529,486 85,716,860
Restricted for:
Endowments:
Expendable 1,789,430 1,789,430
Nonexpendable 14,138,240 14,138,240
Unrestricted 28,956,645 5,705,043 34,661,688
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 109,071,689 $ 27,234,529 $ 136,306,218

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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IOWN OF SOUTH KINGSTOWN. RHODE ISLAND

Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011
Net (Expense) Revenue and
Program Revenues Changes in Net Assets
Charges for Operating Capital
Functions/Programs: Services, Fees Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type
Expenses & Licenses Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Governmental activities:
General government $ 8762355 $ 3568036 $ 996438 $ 782,050 $ (3,415,831) (3,415,831)
Public safety 6,842,338 920,046 4,000 74,430 (5,843,862) (5,843,862)
Public works 3,267,543 114,780 29,739 - (3,123,024) (3,123,024)
Human service agency contributions 145,400 - - - (145,400) (145,400)
Public libraries 1,049,444 27,877 220,363 - (801,204) (801,204)
Education 62,708,323 758,360 13,129,695 2,756 (48,817,512) (48,817,512)
Recreation 2,274,394 921,171 13,670 143,686 (1,195,867) (1,195,867)
Interest on long-term debt 1,067,569 - 230,742 - (836,827) (836,827)
Total governmental activities 86,117,366 6,310,270 14,624,647 1,002,922 (64,179,527) (64,179,527)
Business-type activities:
Wastewater 2,941,505 3,055,955 - 154,650 $ 269,100 269,100
Solid Waste 511,132 483,873 - - (27,259) (27,259)
Water 831,549 954,815 25,000 - 148,266 148,266
School Cafeteria 1,022,540 728,897 296,307 - 2,664 2,664
Total business-type activities 5,306,726 5,223,540 321,307 154,650 - 392,771 392,771
Total $ 91424092 $ 11,533,810 $ 14945954 $ 1,157,572 § (64,179,527) 392,771 (63,786,756)
General revenues:
Property taxes 65,797,804 65,797,804
Motor vehicle phase-out taxes 168,739 168,739
Telephone and hotel taxes 414,890 414,890
Grants and aid not restricted for a specific program 1,413,742 1,413,742
Unrestricted investment earnings 2,733,097 42,184 2,775,281
Transfers 9,000) 9,000 g
Total general revenues and transfers 70,519,272 51,184 70,570,456
Change in Net assets 6,339,745 443,955 6,783,700
Net assets - beginning of year 102,731,944 26,790,574 129,522,518
Net assets - ending of year $ 109,071,689  $ 27,234,529  $ 136,306,218

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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TOWN OF SQUTH KINGSTOWN. RHODE ISLAND

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2011
School School Other Total
General Unrestricted Trust Governmental Govermmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 28,632,822 $ 22,243 $ 440,061 $ 7,102,429 $ 36,197,555

Investments - 14,385,426 1,169,773 15,555,199

Accounts and other receivable 1,003,783 2,618 9,741 28,713 1,044,855

Due from federal and state governments - 145,415 546,605 692,020

Prepaid expenditures 2,579 15,231 9,560 27,370

Due from other funds 208,641 6,793,334 7,788,213 14,790,188

TOTAL ASSETS $ 29,847,825 $ 6,978,841 $ 14,835,228 $ 16,645,293 $ 68,307,187
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable $ 164,466 $ 820,118 $ 687,593 $ 1672177

Retainage payable - 328,168 328,168

Accrued liabilities 641,981 3,395,577 112,675 4,150,233

Due to federal & state governments 37,235 - 37,235

Due to other funds 16,298,821 30,163 $ 99,741 225,121 16,653,846

Deferred revenues 869,149 7,225 - 320,620 1,196,994

Deposits held in custody for others 172,040 172,040

TOTAL LIABILITIES 18,183,692 4,253,083 99,741 1,674,177 24,210,693
FUND BALANCES:

Non-Spendable 2,579 15,231 14,138,240 9,560 14,165,610

Restricted - 597,247 8,976,940 9,574,187

Committed 2,338,443 2,710,527 5,984,616 11,033,586

Assigned -

Unassigned 9,323,111 9,323,111
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 11,664,133 2,725,758 14,735,487 14,971,116 44,096,494
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES _$ 29,847,825 $ 6,978,841 $ 14,835,228 $ 16,645,293 $ 68,307,187

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF SQUTH KINGSTOWN. RHODE ISLAND

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2011

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are different because of the following:

Total Fund Balance reported in Exhibit B-1

Capital assets used in govemmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore are not
reported in the Gov't Fund balance sheet

Deferred bond issuance costs and other debt charges resulting from issuance of refunding and
advance refunding bonds. These charges have been included in the governmental activities
in the Statement of Net Assets.
Net OPEB Obligation is reported on the Statement of Net Assets as an Asset at June 30, 2011 while this
OPEB Obligation/Asset is not reflected in the Gov't Fund balance sheet.
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the
funds. These liabilities are reported in the Statement of Net Assets.

Deferred tax revenues (net of an allowance for uncollectibles) are recorded in the funds, but are not deferred
under the measurement focus employed in the Statement of Net Assets.

Internal Service funds are recorded as proprietary funds in the fund financial statements but are recorded
as governmental activities on the govemment-wide financial statements.

Net premium on refunding has been recorded as deferred revenue on the Statement of Net Assets

Total Net Assets reported in Exhibit A-1

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.

$ 44,096,494

87,837,374

558,396

284,081

(30,060,037)
675,164

5,873,749

(193,532)
$ 109,071,689

(CONCLUDED)
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TQWN OF SOUTH KINGSTOWN, BHORE ISLAND

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

For the Year the Ended June 30, 2011

REVENUES:
General property taxes
Intergovemmental
State Federal Stabilization Fund
Licenses and fees
Investment income (loss)
Fines and charges
Departmental
Contributions
State on behalf pension contribution
Other .
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Human service agency contributions
Public libraries
Education
Recreation
Other
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and other costs
Capital:
Capital expenditures
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCE BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS RESTATED

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

School School Other Total
General Unrestricted Trust Govemmental Govemmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

$ 65,787,357 $ 65,767,357
2,448,476 $ 8,710,452 $ 3,222,030 14,380,958

- 244,944 244944
1,301,246 735,950 2,037,196
225,771 $ 2,315,500 175,216 2,716,487

- 1,178,269 1,178,269
1,064,987 1,064,987

- 374,373 374,373

- 2,098,130 2,098,130

392,318 758,360 66,054 1,216,732
71,200,155 11,811,886 2,315,500 5,751,892 91,079,433
2,578,103 2,578,103
6,563,358 6,563,358
2,081,960 2,081,960
145,400 145,400
928,496 928,496

- 59,894,638 1,925,752 61,820,390

1,296,915 746,176 2,043,091
4,826,044 59,156 1,496,823 6,382,023
3,385,000 50,000 3,435,000
992,907 27,320 1,020,227
5,000 4,314,515 4,319,515
22,803,183 59,894,638 59,156 8,560,586 91,317,563
48,396,972 (48,082,752) 2,256,344 (2,808,694) (238,130)
1,156,581 47,931,098 - 3,104,704 52,192,383
(49,529,328) (20,000) (453,834) (2,198,221) (52,201,383)
(48,372,747) 47,911,098 (453,834) 906,483 (9,000)
24,225 (171,654) 1,802,510 (1,902,211) (247,130)
11,639,908 2,897,412 12,932,977 16,873,327 44,343,624
$ 11,664,133 $ 2,725,758 $ 14,735,487 $ 14,971,116 $ 44,096,494

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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TQWN OF SOUTH KINGSTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

Reconcillation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

of Governmental Funds (Exhibit B-2) to the Statement of Activities (Exhibit A-2)
Year Ended June 30, 2011

EXHIBIT B-3

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds (Exhibit B-2):

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital exceeded depreciation

in the current period.

Governmental funds do not recognize gains or losses on the sale or disposal of capital assets.
The statement of activities includes losses on the disposal of fixed assets during 2011.

Governmental funds do not report donation revenue when infrastructure assets are donated to the Town.
These assets are capitalized on the statement of net assets and therefore reported as donation income
in the statement of activities. This represents the value of donated assets capitalized during 2011.

Governmental funds report principal repayments on debt obligations as an expenditure.
However, the repayment of principal has no effect on the net assets.

Govermental funds report contributions to the OPEB Trust as an expenditure when the contribution occurs.

However, amounts overfunded as determined by the actuary are considered assets on the Statement of
Net Assets. This represents the increase in the Net OPEB Obligation asset/prepaid for fiscal 2011.

Governmental funds do not report estimated accrued claims and judgements as a liability in the
Fund Statements if they are not going to be paid with current available resources. These liabilities
are reported in the government-wide financial statements as long-term debt. This adjustment
reflects the decrease in the estimate from the amount reported at June 30, 2011

Governmental funds report debt issuance costs and premiums on debt financing when they
occur. The net effect of these transactions on the statement of activities and changes in net assets was.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not

reported as revenues in governmental funds. Net deferred tax revenue increased from fiscal 2010.

Excess of internal service funds' revenues over expenses, reported as governmental fund
activity in the statement of activites and changes in net assets.

Increase in compensated absences. The governmental fund reflects this activity when it will be paid
with measurable and available resources. The change from prior year balances is reflected in the
statement of activities and changes in net assets.

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities (Exhibit A-2)

(247,130)

903,920

(192,718)

526,535

3,435,000

284,081

215,513

(76,418)

30,447

1,760,458

(299,943)

6,339,745

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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IQWN OF SOUTH KINGSTOWN. RHODE ISLAND
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

General Fund - Budgetary Basls

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Varlance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual
Revenues and Designated Fund Balance:
Property taxes:
Current taxes $ 64,240,096 64,240,096 $ 64,486,671 248,575
Prior taxes 515,000 515,000 662,004 147,004
Total taxes current and prior 64,755,096 64,755,096 65,148,675 393,579
Pilot - Federal Aid 22,000 22,000 16,423
Interest on taxes 330,000 330,000 372,785 42,785
Payment in lieu of taxes 227,717 227,717 229,474 1,757
Total property taxes 65,334,813 65,334,813 65,767,357 432,544
State aid - Town:
General state aid 124,067 124,067 124,230 163
Telephone tax 271,518 271,518 302,307 30,789
Meals and Beverage tax 515,000 515,000 574,603 59,603
Chapter 26 - School housing 948,806 948,806 942,636 (6,170)
State library construction 17,378 17,378 17,378 -
State library general aid 182,354 182,354 184,634 2,280
State library endowment aid 23,645 23,645 21,366 (2,279)
State motor vehicle phase-out - - 168,739 168,739
Hotel tax 108,000 108,000 112,583 4,583
Total state aid - Town 2,190,768 2,190,768 2,448,476 257,708
Licenses, fees and rents:
Business licenses and fees 340,000 340,000 380,063 40,063
Nonbusiness licenses and fees 375,000 375,000 396,700 21,700
Real Estate conveyance fees 65,000 65,000 84,531 19,531
Rental of Town properties 440,000 440,000 439,952 (48)
Total licenses, fees and rents 1,220,000 1,220,000 1,301,246 81,2468
Investment income - short term 325,000 325,000 225,771 (99,229)
Departmental revenues:
Police department revenues 146,000 146,000 194,718 48,718
Park rental revenue 18,500 18,500 17,047 (1,453)
Town beach parking 94,425 94,425 109,469 15,044
Boat and mooring 23,000 23,000 25,488 2,488
Animal control fees 4,000 4,000 3,300 (700)
Libraries 30,000 30,000 27,877 (2,123)
Dog/cat licenses and fines 5,000 5,000 4,460 (540)
Planning department 200 200 255 55
Recreation department 188,625 188,625 222,320 33,695
Recreation self-support program 144,700 144,700 125,052 (19,648)
Wastewater department 35,200 35,200 35,200 -
Water department 19,200 19,200 19,200 -
Solid waste department 14,400 14,400 14,400 -
Guild 5,100 5,100 5,150 50
Fire alarm 4,000 4,000 2,324 (1,676)
Interfund computer 106,190 106,190 106,190 -
Peace Dale office 2,856 2,856 2,800 (56)
Stepping stone - creative 62,848 62,848 56,612 (6,236)
Stepping stone - self supported 4,500 4,500 2,378 (2,122)
Recreation Dept - Outside Sponsors 17,100 17,100 24,882 7,782
Narragansett - Dog Pound 60,000 60,000 60,000 -
Senior Service Adult Day Care billing fee 5,400 5,400 5,400 -
Geographic information systems program 1,500 1,500 465 (1,035)
Total departmental revenues 992,744 992,744 1,064,987 72,243
(CONTINUED)

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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IOWN OF SOUTH KINGSTOWN. RHODE ISLAND

EXHIBIT C-1 (Continued]

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
General Fund - Budgetary Basis

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Varlance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budaet Budget Actual
Miscellaneous revenues:
School crossing guards 82,000 82,000 75,115 (6,885)
Payroll and accounting 6,600 6,600 6,600 -
School field maintenance reimbursement 52,597 52,597 60,517 7,920
Energy savings 51,804 51,804 51,804 -
Heat detector 3,500 3,500 3,500 -
Miscellaneous - Town 125,000 125,000 167,176 42,176
Copy charges 27,000 27,000 27,872 872
Total miscellaneous 348,501 348,501 392,584 44,083
Use of June 30, 2010 designated fund
balance 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 -
Total revenues and designated fund
balance 71,611,826 71,611,826 72,400,421 788,595
Expenditures:
General government:
Town council 12,850 13,220 13,220 -
Financial town meeting 9,317 9,317 132 9,185
Legal staff 163,216 163,216 155,176 8,040
Probate judge 4,000 4,000 4,000 -
Town clerk 256,437 256,437 250,734 5,703
Public information 4,607 4,607 2,657 1,950
Canvassing authority 73,902 73,902 66,888 7,014
Town manager's office 318,034 317,664 316,804 860
Personnel administration 77,674 77,674 74,462 3,212
League of cities and towns 11,115 11,115 11,115 -
Town hall operations 168,434 168,434 162,133 6,301
Finance department 463,884 453,884 444,741 9,143
Tax assessor's office 245,917 245,917 242,341 3,576
Assessment board of review 1,900 1,900 300 1,600
Data processing division 241,065 241,065 230,477 10,588
Geographic information systems 86,020 86,020 82,139 3,881
Post year audit 22,275 22,275 6,440 15,835
Planning board 4,680 4,680 2,920 1,760
Planning department 287,640 287,640 272,874 14,766
Zoning board of review 11,850 11,850 9,162 2,688
Zoning/building inspection 221,668 221,668 202,086 19,582
Miscellaneous boards and agencies 17,850 17,850 17,850 -
Total general government 2,704,335 2,694,335 2,568,651 125,684
Public safety:
Police department 5,086,314 5,057,835 5,010,804 47,031
Animal control - RD/shelter 203,416 203,418 189,857 13,559
Radio/communication 181,830 181,830 179,296 2,534
Harbor patrol 29,945 29,945 24,362 5,583
Fire company donation 3,600 3,600 3,600 -
Emergency medical services 1,121,105 1,149,584 1,149,584 -
Total public safety 6,626,210 6,626,210 6,557,503 68,707
Public works:
Public works administration 253,272 253,272 239,565 13,707
Streets and highway 1,738,861 1,682,820 1,637,846 44,974
Tree warden 22,641 38,682 38,682 -
Street lighting 170,000 170,000 164,125 5,875
Total public works 2,184,774 2,144,774 2,080,218 64,556
(CONTINUED)

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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IOWN OF SOUTH KINGSTOWN. RHODE ISLAND

EXHIBIT C-1 (Continued]

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
General Fund - Budgetary Basis

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Varlance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Human service agency contributions:
South Shore Mental Health 15,000 15,000 15,000 -
Visiting Nurses Association 25,000 25,000 25,000 -
Thundemist Health Center 25,000 25,000 25,000 -
Phoenix Martathon House 12,000 12,000 12,000 -
South County Community Action 25,000 25,000 25,000 -
Washington County Coalition for Children 400 400 400 -
Cane Day Care Center 9,000 9,000 9,000 -
Hospice of Washington County 1,500 1,500 1,500 -
Domestic Violence Resource Center 5,000 5,000 5,000 -
Jonnycake Center 20,000 20,000 20,000 -
Welcome House of South County 5,000 5,000 5,000 -
Education Exchange 2,500 2,500 2,500 -
Total human service agency contributions 145,400 145,400 145,400 -
Recreation:
Recreation department 1,310,088 1,310,088 1,290,116 19,972
Celebrations 7,000 7,000 6,799 201
Total recreation 1,317,088 1,317,088 1,296,915 20,173
Public libraries 940,779 940,779 928,496 12,283
Capital improvements/projects 100,000 10,000 10,000 -
Miscellaneous:
Insurance 197,400 197,400 158,386 39,014
Unemployment insurance 40,000 40,000 30,930 9,070
Life insurance 12,600 12,600 10,922 1,678
Contingency 65,000 - - -
FICA 790,691 790,691 759,847 30,844
Contribution to Town retirement 748,635 748,635 745,150 3,485
Health insurance 2,972,173 2,972,173 2,972,173 -
Workers' compensation 150,000 150,000 148,636 1,364
Total miscellaneous 4,976,499 4,911,499 4,826,044 85,455
Debt Service 4,398,292 4,398,292 4,377,907 20,385
Total expenditures 23,393,377 23,188,377 22,791,134 397,243
Excess of revenues and designated fund
balance over expenditures 48,218,449 48,423,449 49,609,287 1,185,838
(CONTINUED)

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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EXHIBIT C-1 (Continuad]
TOWN OF SQUTH KINGSTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
General Fund - Budgetary Basis

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Varlance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers:
From Capital Project Funds 558,485 558,485 558,485 -
From School Trust Funds 10,000 10,000 18,027 8,027
From Permanent Trust Funds 25,000 25,000 19,316 (5,684)
From Special Revenue Funds 577,942 577,942 560,753 (17,189)
To Wastewater Fund (9,000) (9,000) (9,000) -
To Eldery Services Fund (349,948) (349,948) (349,948) -
Tax transfer to School Fund (47,909,928) (47,909,928) (47,909,928) -
To Other Special Revenue Funds (120,000) (70,000) (4,452) : 65,548
To Capital Project Funds (1,001,000) (1,256,000) (1,256,000) -
Total other financing uses (48,218,449) (48,423,449) (48,372,747) 50,702
Excess of revenues, other sources and uses of
designated fund balance over expenditures
and other financing uses $ - $ - $ 1,236,540 $ 1,236,540
(CONCLUDED)

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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IQWN OF SQUTH KINGSTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
School Unrestricted Fund - Budgetary Basis

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
State aid $ 9,255,564 $ 9,255,564 $ 9,198,692 $ (56,872)
Tuition 131,059 131,059 95,842 (35,217)
Miscellaneous 847,000 847,000 659,068 (187,932)
Total revenues 10,233,623 10,233,623 9,953,602 (280,021)
Expenditures:
Salaries 34,372,106 34,372,108 34,077,445 294,661
Employee benefits 14,525,150 14,525,150 14,282,375 242,775
Purchased services 7,867,527 7,867,527 7,849,141 18,386
Supplies and materials 1,520,319 1,520,319 1,533,706 (13,387)
Capital outiay 342,771 342,771 410,311 (67,540)
Total expenditures 58,627,873 58,627,873 58,152,978 474,895
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures
before other financing sources (uses) (48,394,250) (48,394,250) (48,199,376) 194,874
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfer from Town of South Kingstown
General Fund 47,909,928 47,909,928 47,909,928 0
Operating transfer from Town of South Kingstown
Trust Funds 20,000 20,000 21,170 1,170
Transfer to School Improvement Capital Project Fund (20,000) (20,000) (20,000) 0
Use of June 30, 2010 designated fund balance 484,322 484,322 484,322 0
Total other financing sources (uses) 48,394,250 48,394,250 48,395,420 1,170
Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses $ - $ - $ 196,044 $ 196,044

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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TQWN OF SQUTH KINGSTOWN. RHORE ISLAND

Statement of Net Assets
Funds
June 30, 2011
Govemmental
Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds Activities
intemal
Wastewater Wastewater Solid Waste Solid Waste Water Water School Cafeteria  School Cafeteria Totals Setvice
(current year) (prior year) (cuentyear) ~_ (prior year) (current year) (prior year) (cumentyear) _ (prior year) (current year) Funds
ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,897,136 $ 3,353,592 $ 1,141,886 $ 1,212,031 $ 1,370,396 $ 1,192,383 $ 88,032 $ 26030 $ 6497450 § 3,030,694
Accounts and other receivables, net 671,118 565,410 40,419 41,298 175,422 165,760 25,340 15,218 912,299 1,002,958
Due from federal and state governments 27,905 24,050 27,905
Due from other funds 40,625 64,692 5,596 40,625 1,984,597
Prepaid expenses - =
Total Current Assets 4,568,254 3,919,002 1,222,930 1,318,021 1,545,818 1,348,143 141,277 70,894 7,478,279 6,018,249
Noncurrent Assets:
Deposits - 364,200
Capital assets not being depreciated 190,903 178,931 1,005,003 1,005,003 540,410 411,875 1,736,316
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 16,497,328 16,842,144 2,148,934 2,211,992 3,840,943 4,021,480 7,584 8,986 22,494,789
Total Noncurrent Assets 16,688,231 17,021,075 3,153,937 3,216,995 4,381,353 4,433,355 7,584 8.986 24,231,105 364,200
TOTAL ASSETS 21,256,485 20,940,077 4,376,867 4,535,016 5,927,171 5,781,498 148,861 79,880 31 ,7_09.384 6,382,449
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 83,000 230,920 22,844 30,198 18,747 61,448 209,839 143,764 334,430
Accrued liabilities 49,188 80,589 8,074 6,772 57,262 508,700
Due to federal and state governments 342,548 207,292 342,548
Due to other funds 38,493 21,634 123,071 21,089 161,564
Deferred revenue 619,589 516,417 619,589
Current portion of compensated absences 95,400 80,000 2,700 3,700 20,500 21,300 118,600
Current portion of bonds 83,260 80,378 137,746 135,169 82,000 80,000 303,006
Total Current Liabilities 1,311,478 1,217,230 163,290 169,067 252,392 190,609 209,839 143,764 1,936,999 508,700
Noncurrent Liabllities:
General obligation bonds, net of current portion 380,205 463,465 1,934,408 2,072,154 84,000 166,000 2,398,613
Deferred bond issuance costs, net (2,803) (4,204) (10,295) (11,005) (13,098)
Compensated absences 113,055 113,421 7,625 2,880 31,661 22,516 1_52.34‘
Total Noncurrent Liabllitles 490,457 572,682 1,931,738 2,064,029 115,661 188,516 - - 2,537,856 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,801,935 1,789,912 2,095,028 2,233,096 368,053 379,125 209,839 143,764 4,474,855 508,700
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 16,224,766 16,477,232 1,081,783 1,009,672 4,215,353 4,187,355 7,584 8,986 21,529,486 =
Unrestricted 3,229,784 2,672,933 1,200,056 1,292,248 1,343,765 1,215,018 68,562 ,870) 5,705,043 5,873,749
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 19454550 $ 19,150,165 $ 2281839 § 2301920 § 5569118 § 5402373 $ (60,978) $ (63884) §$ 27234529 $ 5,873,749

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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JIQWN OF SQUTH KINGSTOWN, RHORE ISLAND
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011
Govermmental
Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds Activities
Intemal
Wastewater Wastewater Solid Waste Solid Waste Water Water School Cafeteria School Cafeteria Totals Service
(cumentyear) __(prior year) (current year) (prior year) (cumentyear) _ (prioryear)  _ (cumentyear) (prior year) (current year) Funds
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for usage and service $ 2,544,533 $ 2,571,850 $ 346,345 $ 361,739 $ 944,819 $ 877,296 $ 728,897 $ 679823 $§ 4564594 § 12,163,276
Other revenues 511,422 521,773 137,528 63,501 9,996 44,868 658,946
Total Operating Revenues 3,055,955 3,093,623 483,873 425,240 954,815 922,164 728,897 679,823 5,223,540 12,163276
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Wells 139,980 134,715 139,980
Pumping 368,871 387,250 9,907 9,677 378,778
Distribution 52,396 18,493 52,396
Treating and sludge 1,268,045 1,331,869 1,268,045
Transportation and disposal 256,126 292,879 266,126
Other operating 124,507 136,424 78,595 6,367 203,102
Administrative and general 589,286 579,068 75,566 69,596 418,322 407,795 1,083,174
Health care management - 10,419,428
Depreciation and amortization 571,612 578,178 63,768 63,768 183,364 182,227 1,402 1,421 820,146
School cafeteria operations 1,021,138 955,577 1,021,138
Repairs and maintenance 8,000 58,528 21,511 44,452 29,511
Total Operating Expenses 2,930,321 3,071,317 474,055 432,610 825,480 797,359 1,022,540 956,998 5&52,396 10,419,428
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 125,634 22,306 9,818 (7,370) 129,335 124,805 {293,643) (277.175) (28.856) 1,743,848
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment income 26,285 24,742 7178 11,490 8,479 9,154 242 42,184 16,610
Loss on disposal of capital assets (282) (467) - - (138) (752) (420)
Value of donated assets 154,650 154,650
State and federal grants - - - 25,000 296,307 274,624 321,307
Interest expense (10,902) (13,118) (37.077) (39,286) (5,931) (7,813) (63,910)
Net Nonoperating Revenues 169,751 11,157 (29.899) (27,796) 27,410 589 296,549 274,624 463,811 16,610
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS 295,385 33,463 (20,081) (35,166) 156,745 125,394 2,906 (2,551) 434,955 1,760,458
Transfers in 9,000 16,155 - - - - - - 9,000 -
Transfers (Out) - - - - - - - - - -
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 304,385 49,618 (20,081) (35,166) 156,745 125,394 2,906 (2,551) 443,955 1,760,458
TOTAL NET ASSETS - BEGINNING (RESTATED) 19,150,165 19,100,547 2,301,920 2,337,086 5,402,373 5,276,979 (63,884) (61,333) 26,790,574 4,113,291
TOTAL NET ASSETS - ENDING $ 19454550 $ 19,150,165 $ 27281839 $ 2,301,920 $ 5659118 $ 5402373 § (60,978) $ (63,884) $ 27,234529 § 5,873,749

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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TOWN OF SOUTH KINGSTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers
Cash received from providing services
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services and other operating payments
Cash paid to employees
Cash paid for claims
Cash paid for other operating expenses
Net cash provided (used ) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfers to (from) other funds
Nonoperating grants received
Decrease (Increase) in due to (from) other funds
Net cash provided (used ) by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of capital assets
Principal paid on bonds
Interest paid on bonds
Net cash provided (used) for capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment income
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Govemmental
Business-type Activities- Enterprise Funds Activities
intemal
Service
Wastewater Solid Waste Water School Cafeteria Totals Funds
$ 3,053,419 $ 484,752 $ 935,153 $ 718,775 $ 5,192,099
- $ 11,781,849
(1,765,228) (342,075) (266,495) (955,063) (3,328,861)

(605,653) (71,821) (306,693) - (984,167)

- (10,913,580)

682,538 70,856 361,965 (236,288) 879,071 868,269
9,000 - - 9,000 -

- 25,000 292,452 317,452
24,067 5,696 29,663
9,000 24,067 25,000 298,048 356,115 N
(82,999) - (131,500) - (214,499)
(80,378) (135,169) (80,000) (295,547)
(10,902) (37,077) (5,931) (53,910)

(174,279) (172,246) (217,431) - (563,956) 0
26,285 7,178 8,479 242 42,184 16,610
26,285 7,178 8,479 242 42,184 16,610

(CONTINUED)

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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TOWN OF SQUTH KINGSTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided
(used ) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense
Increase in compensated absences
(Increase) decrease in accounts/miscellaneous receivable
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds
(Increase) decrease in deposits
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds
Increase (decrease) in due to federal and state govemments
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Non-cash transactions:

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 the Wastewater Fund received donated infrastructure asse!

The donation of these assets came from property developers. The donation constitutes a non cash transaction and accordingly,
from the statement of cash flows. Value is excluded from non-operating revenue and from capital asset acquisition.

Govemmental
Business-type Activities- Enterprise Funds Activities
Intemal
Service
Wastewater Solid Waste Water School Cafeteria Totals Funds
543,544 (70,145) 178,013 62,002 713,414 884,879
3,353,592 1,212,031 1,192,383 26,030 5,784,036 2,145,815
$ 3,897,136 $ 1,141,886 $ 1,370,386  $§ 88,032 $ 6497450 §$ 3,030,694
$ 125,634 § 9818 § 129,335 § (293,643) $ (28,856) $ 1,743,848
571,612 63,768 183,364 1,402 820,146
15,034 3,745 8,345 27,124
(105,708) 879 (19,662) (10,122) (134,613) (793,250)
- - 411,823
. . - (188,900)
(147,920) (7,354) (42,701) 66,075 (131,900) (320,936)
(31,401) - 1,302 (30,099) 15,684
16,859 - 101,982 118,841 -
135,256 135,256
103,172 - 103,172
$ 682,538 $ 70,856 $ 361,965 $ (236,288) $ 879,071 $ 868,269
ts with a fair market value of approximately $154,650.
the value has been omitted
(CONCLUDED)

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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IQWN OF SOUTH KINGSTOWN, RHODE ISLAND.

Statement of Fiduclary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2011
Cemetery Care
Private - Purpose OPEB Agency
Trust Fund Trust Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 176,891 $ 134,563 $ 292,047
Investments - 1,510,037 12,448
Other receivables 5,032
TOTAL ASSETS 176,891 1,649,632 304,495
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 200
Deposits held in custody for others 304,495
TOTAL LIABILITIES 200 - 304,495
NET ASSETS
Funds held in trust $ 176,691 $ 1,649,632 $ -

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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TOWN OF SOUTH KINGSTOWN. DE

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2011

Cemetery Care
Private -Purpose OPEB

TrustFund ~ Trust Fund

ADDITIONS:

Charges for services $ 2,250

Employer contributions . $ 466,000

Investment income 1,532 173,146
TOTAL ADDITIONS 3,782 639,146

DEDUCTIONS: :

Operating expenses in accordance with agreement 8,638 11,189
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS 8,638 11,189

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (4,856) 627,957
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 181,547 1,021,675
NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 176,691 $ 1,649,632

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Town complies with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). GAAP includes all
relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. Private-sector standards of
accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed in both the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict
with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the
option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds,
subject to the same limitation. The Town has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. The
accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting policies are discussed in
subsequent subsections of this Note.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. '

Reporting Entity

The Town of South Kingstown was incorporated in 1723. The Town operates under a council/town
manager form of government, with a five member Town Council headed by a Council President. The Town
Manager exercises the executive power of Town government and is responsible to the Town Council for day
to day operation of the Town’s affairs. All legislative powers of the Town are vested in the Town Council.

In evaluating how to define the government for financial reporting purposes, management has
considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting
entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 39. Under GASB Statement No. 39,
the financial reporting entity includes both the primary government and all of its component units. Component
units are legally separate entities that meet any one of the following three tests:

Test1—-  The primary government appoints the voting majority of the board of the potential
component unit and is able to impose its will on the potential component unit and/or is in
a relationship of financial benefit or burden with the potential component unit;

Test2-  The potential component is fiscally dependent upon the primary government; or

Test3-  The financial statements would be misleading if data from the potential component unit
were not included.

The following entities were considered for classification as component units for fiscal year 2011.

s South Kingstown School Department
= Narragansett Library Association

Although these entities meet certain criteria of the tests listed above, neither entity is deemed to have
a separate legal status apart from the Town. As a result, the financial data of the above entities have been
included in the Governmental Funds within the Town’s financial statements. There are no component units of
the Town at June 30, 2011.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF SOUTH KINGSTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Baslis of Presentation
Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and statement of activities report information about the reporting
government as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. The
statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities generally
are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues. Business-type
activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds each of which is considered
to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing
accounts which constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditure/expenses. Funds are
organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. Major individual governmental
funds and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. A fund is
considered a major fund if it is the primary operating fund of the Town or meets the following criteria:

(a) Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual

governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for
all funds of that category or type,
and

(b) Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual

governmental fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total

for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:

Governmental Funds
General Fund
The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Town and is always classified as a major fund.

It is used to account for all activities except those legally or administratively required to be accounted for in
other funds.

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
committed or restricted to expenditures for specific purposes other than debt service or capital projects.

(CONTINUED)




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Governmental Funds (Continued)

Capital Project Funds

The Capital Project Funds are used to account for resources restricted for the acquisition or
construction of specific capital projects or items.

Permanent Funds

The Permanent Funds account for assets held by the Town pursuant to trust agreements. The
principal portion of this fund type must remain intact, but the earnings may be used to achieve the objectives
of the fund.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public.
These activities are financed primarily by user charges and the measurement of financial activity focuses on
net income measurement similar to the private sector. The Proprietary Funds include both Enterprise and
Internal Service Funds. The Town has two Internal Service Funds which are used to pay medical and dental
costs incurred by persons covered by the health benefit plan of the Town and for payment of accrued
compensated absences which arise and are not included in the annual budget.

Fiduciary Funds (Not included in government wide statements)

Agency Funds

Agency funds account for assets held by the Town in a purely custodial capacity. The
reporting entity includes two agency funds at June 30, 2011. Since agency funds are
custodial in nature (i.e. assets equal liabilities), they do not involve the measurement of
results of operations. The agency funds are as follows:

- Unclaimed Estates
- Student Activities Fund

Private-purpose Trust Funds

Private-purpose trust funds are used to account for resources legally held in trust for
use by parties outside of the Town, and cannot be used at the Town'’s discretion or to support
the Town’s general operations. The reporting entity has two private-purpose trust funds, the
Cemetery-Care Fund and the OPEB Trust Fund. The net assets of these funds are utilized
for the care and maintenance of cemeteries within the Town, and for funding future OPEB
obligations.
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Major and Non-Major Funds

The funds are further classified as major or non-major as follows:

Fund

Major:
General Fund:

Special Revenue Funds:

School Unrestricted Fund

Permanent Funds:
School Trust Funds

Proprietary Funds:
Wastewater

Solid Waste

Water

School Cafeteria

Brief Description

See above for description

This fund is used to report all financial transactions
of the South Kingstown School Department, which
are not legally required to be accounted for
separately.

This fund reports the activity of various trust funds
established for recreational and educational
purposes.

Accounts for the operations of the regional
wastewater treatment facility.

Accounts for the solid waste disposal operations of
the Town.

Accounts for the supply of public water to the South
Shore area of Town.

Accounts for the operation of the school breakfast
and lunch program of the South Kingstown School
Department. This fund did not meet the criteria
for reporting as a major fund however,
management elected to present the fund as a
major fund.
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Major and Non-Major Funds (Continued)
Fund
Non-Major:

Special Revenue Funds:

Capital Project Funds:

Permanent Funds:

Brief Description

Affordable Housing, Alcohol Grant, Animal Shelter
Benefit Fund, Asset Forfeiture Fund, Byrne Memorial
Justice Assistance Grant, Community Development
Block Grants, Drug Free Communities Grant, Elderly
Services, EMS Billing Services Fund, Governor's
Justice Commission Grants, Historical and Vital
Recording Fees, Narragansett Library Association,
Neighborhood Guild, Peacedale Office Building,
Property Revaluation Reserve Fund, Rl Resource
Recovery Grant, Seat Belt Enforcement Grants,
South Road School Reserve Fund, Substance
Abuse, Tobacco Compliance Investigation Project,
Nancy Brown Memorial Fund, and School Restricted
Funds.

Animal Shelter Addition Fund, Bridge Improvement
Fund, Capital Equipment & Replacement Fund, Data
Processing Improvement Fund, @ Downtown
intermodal Enhancement Project Fund, Impact Fee
Reserve Fund, Library Building Construction, Open
Space Reserve Fund, Police Building Construction
Fund, Public Services Office Building Improvement,
Public Works Improvement Fund, Recreation
Development & Restoration Fund, Recreation
Improvement Fund, School Improvement Fund,
Senior Services Center Construction Fund, Town
Hall Improvement Fund, and Wastewater
Construction Fund.

Hazard Memorial Trust, Irving Knowles Trust,
Gertrude S. Parker Trust, Oliver Watson Home
Fund, Walter W. Watson Trust, and Kingston Free
Library Trust Fund.
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Measurement Focus

On the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities both governmental
and business-like activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus as defined in
item b. below and the accrual basis of accounting.

In the fund financial statements, the "current financial resources" measurement focus or the
"economic resources" measurement focus is used as appropriate:

(a) All governmental funds utilize a “"current financial resources” measurement focus. Only
current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their
operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources
during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their measure of available spendable
financial resources at the end of the period. The Town considers property taxes as available
if they are collected within 60 days after year end. Grant revenue (for expenditure
reimbursement grants) of the governmental funds is generally recognized as revenue when
earned as long as the payment is expected to be received within twelve months after year
end. Substantially all other revenue of the governmental funds is recognized utilizing the
modified accrual method of accounting and as such is recognized as revenue when received.

(b) The proprietary funds and private purpose trust funds utilize “"economic resources"
measurement focus. The accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the
determination of net income, financial position and cash flows. All assets and liabilities
(whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activities are reported. Fund equity is
classified as net assets.

(c) Agency funds are not involved in the measurement of results of operations; therefore,
measurement focus is not applicable to them.

Basis of Accounting

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities both governmental and
business-like activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or
economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and
exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when "measurable
and available". Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount. Available
means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities. Expenditures
(including capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for general obligation
bond principal and interest which are reported when due.

All proprietary funds, agency funds, and private purpose trust funds utilize the accrual basis of
accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used.
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Baslis of Accounting (Continued)

Amounts reported as program revenues include charges to customers or applicants for licenses, fees,
goods, services or privileges provided, operating grants and contributions, and capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the proprietary fund’s
principal operation. The principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds are charges for services provided
in accordance with the fund’s purpose. Operating expenses for the enterprise funds include the costs of
providing the services, including administration and depreciation on capital assets. All other revenue and
expense items not meeting these criteria are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Assets, Liablilitles, and Fund Equity
Cash

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost. Cash equivalents include amounts invested
in certificate of deposits as management believes that these certificates can be accessed at any point
in time. Substantially, all of the Town’s cash and cash equivalents are held in public deposit
institutions. Pursuant to Section 35-10-1 of the Rhode Island General Laws, as of October 1, 1991,
public deposit institutions are required to insure accounts which hold public funds in excess of the
$250,000 which is guaranteed by FDIC. At times, the Town pools cash resources of its various funds
to facilitate the management of cash and maximize investment returns.

State statutes and the Town charter authorize the Town to invest in obligations of the U.S.
Treasury, commercial paper, corporate bonds, and repurchase agreements.

Investments

The Town invests in various types of investments, which are stated at fair value.
Accounts Receivable

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end
and not yet received. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical
trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts
receivable amounted to $517,021 at June 30, 2011. The allowance for uncollectible accounts
includes $498,521 for property taxes and $18,500 for enterprise fund service fees. Major receivable
balances for the governmental activities include property taxes (95% of balance). Business-type
activities report service fees as its major receivables.

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include revenue
accruals such as property taxes collected within 60 days of year-end and grants and other similar
intergovernmental revenues since they are usually both measurable and available. Non-exchange
transactions earned/measurable but not available are deferred in the fund financial statements in
accordance with modified accrual, but not deferred in the government-wide financial statements in
accordance with the accrual basis. Proprietary fund material receivables consist of all revenues
earned at year-end and not yet received. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based
upon historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Assets, Liabilitles, and Fund Equity (Continued)

Property Taxes

Real and personal property taxes are based on values assessed as of each December 31
(lien date) and attach as an enforceable lien on property as of July 1 (levy date). Taxes are due in
equal quarterly instaliments on August 1, November 1, February 1, and May 1 following the levy date.
The taxpayer may elect to pay the taxes in full by September 1, annually. Taxes due and unpaid after
the respective due dates are subject to interest at a rate of 12% per annum calculated on the unpaid
portion of the total tax. An automatic lien is placed on the taxpayer's property if payment has not
been received by the tax due date. Property taxes levied are recorded as receivables in the fiscal
year of the levy. Property tax revenues are recorded in accordance with the modified accrual basis of
accounting in the fund financial statements.

Prepaids
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are

recorded as prepaid assets. Prepaids recorded in governmental type funds do not reflect current
appropriated resources and, as such is reported as nonspendable fund balance.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The accounting treatment over property, plant and equipment (capital assets) depends on
whether the assets are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and
whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements as discussed below.

Government-Wide Statements

In the government-wide financial statements, long-lived assets are accounted for as
capital assets. All capital assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if
actual is unavailable, except for donated capital assets, which are recorded at their estimated
fair value at the date of donation.

Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets with an initial, individual cost of
$500 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.

The government-wide financial statements include all infrastructure assets in
accordance with GASB Statement #34.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded, as an allocated expense in
the Statement of Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net
Assets. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life using the straight-line method
of depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows:

Buildings 20 - 40 years
Land improvements 10 - 40 years
Building improvements 10 - 40 years
Equipment 3 -30 years
Vehicles 3 -30 years
Infrastructure 10 - 75 years
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Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity (Continued)

Fund Financlal Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations
are accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition.
Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for in the same manner as

in the government-wide statements.

Deferred Revenues

In the government-wide financial statements, deferred revenues represent funds received in
advance of being earned/owed or receivables which will be collected and included in revenues of
future fiscal years. In the General Fund, (of the fund financial statements), deferred revenues include
property tax receivables which are assessed on December 31, 2009 and prior and are not collected
within 60 days of June 30, 2011. Net deferred taxes included in the fund financial statements were

$675,164 at June 30, 2011.

Interfund Transactions

Interfund activity within and among the funds of the Town have been classified and reported
as follows:

- Reciprocal interfund activities:

Interfund loans are reported as interfund receivables in the lending fund and
interfund payables in borrower funds.

Interfund services are reported as revenues in the seller fund and as
expenditures or expenses in the purchasing fund.

- Non-reciprocal interfund activities:

Interfund transfers are reported in governmental funds as other financing
uses in the funds making transfers and as other financing sources in the
funds receiving transfers. In proprietary funds transfers are reported after
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Interfund reimbursements are repayments from the fund responsible for
particular expenditures or expenses to other funds that initially paid for them.
Reimbursements are not displayed separately within the financial
statements.
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Equity Classifications

Government-Wide Statements

Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components:

(a) Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Consists of capital assets including
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

(b) Restricted net assets - Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use
either by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments, or 2) law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

(c) Unrestricted net assets - All other net assets that do not meet the definition of
“restricted"” or "invested in capital assets, net of related debt".

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. In accordance with GASB Statement
No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, fund balance is classified
as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned. These categories are defined
below:

e Nonspendable Fund Balance - includes the amount of fund balance that cannot be spent
because it is either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact. “Not in spendable form” includes items that are not expected to be
converted to cash.

e Restricted Fund Balance — includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes. Fund
balance is reported as restricted when constraints placed in the use of resources are either
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

e Committed Fund Balance — includes amounts that can be used only for the specific
purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the government’s highest level
of decision-making authority. Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other
purpose unless the government removes or changes the specified use by taking the same
type of action it employed to previously commit those amounts. The Town Council is the
highest level of decision-making authority and utilizes Town Ordinances as a formal
procedure to commit fund balance. The majority of committed fund balance is established
through passage of the annual Town budget warrant.

e Assigned Fund Balance - includes amounts that are constrained by the government’s intent
to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The intent should
be expressed by (a) the governing body itself or (b) a body (a budget or finance committee)
or official to which the governing body has delegated the authority to assign amounts to be
used for specific purposes. In June 2011 the Town Council gave assigning authority to the
Town Manager.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fund Statements (Continued)

e Unassigned Fund Balance ~ is the residual classification for the General Fund. This classification
represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted,
committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the General Fund. The unassigned fund balance
may also include negative balances for any governmental funds if the expenditures exceed amounts
restricted, committed or assigned for specific purposes.

Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts. Upon retirement,
termination or death, certain employees are compensated for unused vacation and sick leave (subject
to certain limitations) at their current rates of pay. The amount recorded is the unused days earned at
the current rate of pay. For governmental activities the general fund is used to satisfy this liability as it
becomes due, while each enterprise fund accounts for all its settlement of business-type liabilities for
compensated absences. Compensated absences are accrued at varying amounts based on the
collective bargaining unit contracts of the various unions.

Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance — total
governmental funds and net assets — governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement
of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities are not due and payable in
the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.” The details of this $30,060,037 are as follows:

Bonds payable ..........cceveeuirueineinrenrennnnesesneesanessenees $23,650,000
Accrued claims and judgments...........ccocceeeeinnninennn. 1,755,270
Compensated abSeNCeS.........ccecvereeesiesuerenesnsssencneene 4,654,767

TORAL .......eeeeeeeeceeeeereenentseeeseetsessesssessnessananns $30,060,037

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance and the Government-wide Statement of Activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and changes in net assets of
governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that
reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense.” The details of this $903,920 difference are as follows:

Capital QUIAYS .......ccovverirmeneiereieine e $ 4,759,982
Depreciation EXPeNnSe ..........coueeeerreeesiesessceseeeasesinnns (3.856.062)
Net adjustment.....................oooueieenrnvinesensnsenncnnes $ 903,920
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Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance and the Government-wide Statement of Activities
(Continued)

Another element of the reconciliation states that “the governmental fund reflects this activity when it is
paid with measurable and available resources.” The details of the ($299,943) are as follows:

Compensated absences at beginning of year.......... $4,354,824
Compensated absences at end of year... ................ (4.654.767)
Net adjustment.....................coueeeevureveesereennne donves ($.299,943)

Another element of that reconciliation states that, “Revenues in the statement of activities that do not
provide current financial resources are not reported as revenues in governmental funds.” The details of this
$30,447 difference are as follows:

Net deferred tax revenue - ending..........cccccvevcveenneen. $675,164
Net deferred tax revenue — beginning..............c....... (644.717)
Net adjustment (increase net asset)...........ccc..cunuen. $ 30,447

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 the Town implemented the following new accounting
pronouncements:
e GASB Statement No. 54 - Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions. Implementation of this Statement required a restatement of fund balance at the
beginning of the year due to reclassification of some of the Funds.

e GASB Statement No. 59 — Financial Instruments Omnibus. Adoption of this Statement did
not have a significant impact on the Town’s fiscal 2011 financial statements.

The following are recently issued governmental accounting standards which will be applicable in
future years:
e GASB Statement No. 60 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession
Arrangements, effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

¢ GASB Statement No. 61 — The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus an amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and No. 34, effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

e GASB Statement No. 62 — Codification of Acc<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>